
CITY OF ALBION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 
 

City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 
 

. 
 

 AGENDA  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Monday, June 19, 2017 
. 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 
PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING-Set 2017 Tax Levy 
 
  A. Request Approval Resolution # 2017-25, To Set 2017 Tax  
       Levy (RCV) 
 

VII. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. 2016 Annual Audit-Abraham Gaffney 
B. Big Read-Jess Roberts 
C. Build Albion Fellows Update 
D. AmeriCorps Vista Update 
E. Update on Precinct 4 Town Hall Meeting-Council Member 

Lawler 
 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 
agenda items only and to no more than three (3) minutes. Proper decorum is required.) 

 
IX. CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on as one unit) 

 
A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, June 5, 2017 

 
 

COUNCIL-MANAGER 
GOVERNMENT 
 
Council members and 
other officials normally in 
attendance. 
 
 
Garrett Brown 
Mayor 
 
Maurice Barnes, Jr. 
Council Member 
1st Precinct 
 
Lenn Reid 
Council Member 
2nd Precinct 
 
Sonya Brown 
Council Member 
3rd Precinct 
 
Marcola Lawler 
Council Member 
4th Precinct 
 
Jeanette Spicer 
Council Member  
5th Precinct   
 
Andrew French 
Council Member 
6th Precinct 
 
Sheryl L. Mitchell 
City Manager  
 
 The Harkness Law Firm 
Atty Cullen Harkness  
 
Jill Domingo 
City Clerk 
 
 
NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH 
HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS 
WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A 
PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE   
 
Please contact the City 
Clerk’s office at 
517.629.5535 and a listening 
device will be provided 
upon notification.  If you 
require a signer, please 
notify City Hall at least five 
(5) days prior to the posted 
meeting time. 



CITY OF ALBION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 
 

City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 
 

B. Approval of Assembly Permit for Brandon Heselchwerdt  
      for a Multi-Church Gospel Sing on Sept. 16, 2017 from 12-             
     7:00 pm 

C. Approval of Assembly Permit for Bill & Karen Dobbins for 
   the Swinging at the Shell Concerts on Sunday’s from July 
    23, 2017 through September 10, 2017 

 
X. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 
A. Request Approval 2016 Annual Audit (RCV) 

 
B. Request Approval Resolution # 2017-26, A Resolution to Approve 

Amendment of City Council Meeting Schedule (RCV) 
 

C.   Request Approval Resolution # 2017-27, To Approve Additional Funding for 
Calhoun County Land Bank Authority Demolition Program (RCV) 

 
D. Request Approval Resolution # 2017-28, A Resolution to Approve COPS 

Hiring Program Grant Application (RCV) 
 

E. Request Approval Resolution # 2017-29, To Approve Electronic Recycling 
Program (RCV) 
 

F.  Request Approval 2nd  Reading and Adoption of Ordinance # 2017-04, An 
Ordinance to  Amend Ordinance # 66-140 Solid Waste (RCV) 

 
G. Request Approval 2nd  Reading and Adoption of Ordinance # 2017-05, An 

Ordinance to Amend Ordinances # 94-1, 94-2, 94-3 and 94-4 and to 
Rescind Ordinances # 94-5, 94-6, 94-7, 94-36, 94-37, 94-38, 94-66, 94-67, 94-
68, 94-69, 94-70, 94-71, 94-96, 94-97, 94-98, 94-99, 94-100, 94-131, 94-132, 94-
133 and 94-134 (RCV) 
 

H.  Discussion-Changes/Recommendations for Council Rules of Procedure 
 

I. Discussion-Update on Pothole Repairs on Ionia & North Street and Division 
and Hall Street. 

 
XI. City Manager Report 

 
XII. Future Agenda Items 

 
XIII. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member(s) 

 



CITY OF ALBION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 
 

City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 
 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to no more than three (3) 
minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 

 
XV. ADJOURN 

 



CITY OF ALBION 
Office of the City Manager 

Sheryl L. Mitchell  
 

112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 
517.629.7172 ♦ smitchell@cityofalbionmi.gov 

MEMO 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FR: Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Manager 

DA: June 19, 2017 

RE: Agenda Summary 
 

 
 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION  
   

VI. A. Request Approval Request Approval Resolution # 2017-25, To Set 2017 Tax Levy. Annual 
resolution to approve the level of funding for the General Operating Fund. The ad 
valorem taxable value of real and personal property as determined by the City 
Assessor is $81,624,511 for 2017. This is compared to $80,723,907 in 2016. Although small, 
this is the first increase in value for Albion in many years.  The only levy that is changed 
from 2016 is the Debt Service for GO Bonds, which has decreased from 1.5800 mills in 
2016 to 1.000 mills in 2017. A public hearing is required. City Manager recommends 
approval    

 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 
A. Request Approval 2016 Annual Audit. The audit is for the year ending December 31, 

2016. The General Fund balance increased from the prior year. This is the second 
consecutive year in which the audit did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls 
that would be considered a material weakness – “clean audit”. City Manager 
recommends approval    

  

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Change           

FY 16-FY 17 Millage rate
General Fund Operations 1,124,312.29$      1,100,147.38$     966,555.77$        977,333.00$       10,777.23$      11.9736
Solid Waste 187,798.54$         183,758.84$         242,171.72$        244,872.00$       2,700.28$        3.0000
Debt Service for GO Bonds 122,069.05$         139,647.36$         127,543.77$        81,624.00$         (45,919.77)$    1.0000
Street Improvements 281,697.81$         275,640.69$         242,171.72$        244,872.00$       2,700.28$        3.0000
Recreation 140,848.90$         137,816.11$         121,085.86$        122,436.00$       1,350.14$        1.5000

AD VALOREM TAXABLE VALUE 93,899,265.00$   90,882,410.00$   80,723,907.00$  81,624,511.00$ 

mailto:smitchell@cityofalbionmi.gov


B. Request Approval Resolution #2017-26. Change Monday, July 3rd Council Meeting to 
Wednesday, July 5th, 2017. The City Charter, Section 5.6(a), indicates that the time and 
place of regular meetings of the City Council are to be set by resolution. This year, the 
July 4th holiday is on a Tuesday. It has been requested to modify the current meeting 
schedule which includes Monday, July 3, 2017 as a meeting date. The purpose of this 
amendment would be to allow the council members and staff to enjoy an extended 
holiday weekend. The council meeting schedule would be amended to move the July 
3, 2017 meeting to July 5, 2017. The meeting would continue to be in the City Council 
chambers and commence at 7pm. City Manager recommends approval    
 

C. Request Approval Resolution #2017-27, To Approve Additional Funding for 
Calhoun County Land Bank Authority Demolition Program. The CCLBA received a 
$3.8 million grant for demolitions, including 26 residential properties in Albion. The grant 
provides $25,000 toward the demolition and abatement costs for each site. The bids for 
the removal of asbestos and hazardous materials caused a significant increase in the 
total demolition costs for several of the properties that exceeds the grant funded 
amount. The CCLBA has already committed to fund the additional costs to cover the 
demolition of 4 properties. The City of Albion is requested maximize the number of 
houses that are demolished by proving $10,000 toward the cost increase. This will allow 
for the demolition of 2 additional properties. City Manager recommends approval    
 

D. Request Approval Resolution #2017-28. A Resolution to Approve Cops Hiring 
Program Grant Application. The 2017 COPS Hiring Program provides law enforcement 
agencies with funding to hire law enforcement officers to increase crime prevention 
and community policing. If awarded, the grant would cover up to 75% of the approved 
entry-level salary and fringe benefits of each newly hired officer over a three-year 
award period. The grant requires a 25% match from the local municipality. Approval is 
requested to submit an application seeking funding for two (2) positions. The 
applications are due by June 23, 2017. City Manager recommends approval    
 

E. Request Approval Resolution # 2017-29, Electronics Recycling Program. Each 
year, the City of Albion holds a community-wide clean up event in partnership with the 
Solid Waste and Recycling Program of the Calhoun County Community Development 
Department. This year it will be held on Saturday, July 22nd.  The event also includes an 
Electronics Recycling Program. This allows for the safe recycling of items such as 
computers, and televisions. There are additional costs to the vendors to properly 
transport and dispose of these items – especially the large older televisions. Although 
the City of Albion was successful in obtaining a $500 mini-grant from the Calhoun 
County Community Development – Waste Program to support this program, additional 
funding is needed. The resolution approves allocating up to $2,000 to support the 
Electronics Recycling Program. This will also help avoid requiring residents to pay $10 
per television if they bring such items. City Manager recommends approval    

  



 
F. Request Approval 2nd Reading and Adoption Ordinance # 2017-04, An 

Ordinance to Amend Ordinance # 66-139 Solid Waste. The Solid Waste Ordinance 
is proposed to be amended to specify that the single hauler can pick up yard clippings. 
Also, there have been a number of requests to allow residents to make arrangements 
for bulk pick up. This language is added to the ordinance to allow for bulky items to be 
placed at the curb within 48 hours of the arranged pickup and these items must meet 
the guidelines of the refuse hauler.   City Manager recommends approval    
 

G. Request Approval 2ND Reading and Adoption Ordinance # 2017-05, An 
Ordinance to Amend Ordinances # 94-1, 94-2, 94-3 and 94-4 and to Rescind 
Ordinances # 94-5, 94-6, 94-7, 94-36, 94-37, 94-38, 94-66, 94-67, 94-68, 94-69, 94-
70, 94-71, 94-96, 94-97, 94-98, 94-99, 94-100, 94-131, 94-132, 94-133 and 94-134. 
The Michigan Legislature recently enacted Public Act 345 of 2016, the Limousine, 
Taxicab, and Transportation Network Act. The Act took effect March 21, 2017. With the 
development of companies such as UBER and LYFT, the State has determined that 
regulation of vehicles for hire should remain at the state level and has effectively 
removed regulation of the same from municipalities. As such, it is necessary to rescind 
the bulk of the City of Albion’s vehicle for hire ordinances. The remaining regulations 
permitted for local municipalities have been integrated by amending Sections 94-1 
through 94-4. City Manager recommends approval    
 

H. Discussion – Changes/Recommendations for Council Rules of Procedure. The 
Council Committee met and has drafted recommended changes.  The amended 
document was not available at the time of the mail out of the agenda packet and will 
be provided. 
 

I. Discussion – Update on Pothole Repairs on Ionia & North Street and Division and 
Hall Street. This is a follow up to information that was shared by a resident at the June 
5th Council meeting. The Department of Public Services has reported that the potholes 
on the identified streets have been repaired. 
 

 
 

















































1 
 

Resolution #2017-26 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
SCHEDULE 

 
Purpose and Finding: Pursuant to the City Charter, Section 5.6(a), the time and place 
of regular meetings of the City Council are to be set by resolution. Due to the upcoming 
July 4 holiday it has been requested to modify the current meeting schedule which 
includes July 3, 2017 as a meeting date. The purpose of this amendment would be to 
allow the council members and administrative staff to enjoy an extended holiday 
weekend. The schedule would be amended to move the July 3, 2017 meeting to July 5, 
2017. The meeting would continue to be in the City Council chambers and commence 
at 7pm.  
 
Council Member____________________ moved, supported by Council Member 
___________________, to approve the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Albion City Council regular council meeting schedule shall be 
amended such that the July 3, 2017 at 7:00pm meeting shall now be July 5, 2017 at 
7:00pm. The meeting will continue to be in the council chambers. All other previously 
scheduled regular meetings of the council shall remain unmodified.  
 
 
 
Date: June 19, 2017 
 
Ayes: _______ 
 
Nays: _______ 
 
Absent:_______ 
 
I certify that this resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Albion on June 
19, 2017. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jill Domingo 
City Clerk 
 
 
 







1 
 

Resolution #2017-28 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE COPS HIRING PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 
 
Purpose and Finding: As the council is aware, budgetary constraints have impacted all 
departments of the City, including the public safety department. As a result, over the 
past several years the number of public safety officers has declined. The 2017 COPS 
Hiring Program provides law enforcement agencies with funding to hire law enforcement 
officers to increase crime prevention and community policing. If awarded, the grant 
would cover up to 75% of the approved entry-level salary and fringe benefits of each 
newly hired officer over a three-year award period. The grant requires a 25% match 
from the local municipality. Additional costs beyond the entry-level salary would remain 
the responsibility of the municipality. Given that the Albion Public Safety Department 
currently has less than 20 officers, the request would be limited to a request for funding 
for two positions. Council approval for this grant submission is requested and approval 
is recommended by the administrative staff. 
 
Council Member____________________ moved, supported by Council Member 
___________________, to approve the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED, the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the grant application for the 2017 
COPS Hiring Program on behalf of the City of Albion. 
 
 
Date: June 19, 2017 
 
Ayes: _______ 
 
Nays: _______ 
 
Absent:_______ 
 
I certify that this resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Albion on June 
19, 2017. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jill Domingo 
City Clerk 
 
 
 












































	1      06192017 agenda.pdf
	2     Memo - 2017.06.19  Agenda Summary.pdf
	3      property tax notice and resolution.pdf
	4       Consent Calendar Items.pdf
	5    Audit.pdf
	6      Resolution 2017-26.pdf
	7     Resolution 2017-27 backup.pdf
	8     Resolution 2017-28 rev1.pdf
	9       Resolution 2017-29 backup.pdf
	10    Ordinance # 2017-04.pdf
	11   Ordinance # 2017-05.pdf
	12    Information Only Docs.pdf

